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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK  

SQUARE ONE CHOICES INC., 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

DITEC SOLUTIONS LLC, 

Defendant. 

Civil Action No. 22-cv-7680 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

Plaintiff Square One Choices Inc. (“Square One Choices” or “Plaintiff”), for its Complaint 

against Ditec Solutions LLC, d/b/a MYNT3D (referred to herein as “MYNT3D” or “Defendant”), 

alleges the following: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the Patent Laws of the

United States, 35 U.S.C. § 1 et seq., including 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

THE PARTIES 

2. Plaintiff Square One Choices is a corporation organized under the laws of the

State of New York. 

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a company organized under the laws

of Utah and located at 159 W Broadway, Suite 200, PMB 143, Salt Lake City, UT 84101. 

Upon information and belief, Defendant sells, offers to sell, and/or uses products and 

services throughout the United States, including in this judicial district, and introduces 

infringing products and services into the stream of commerce knowing that they would be 

sold and/or used in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States. 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 

4. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the Patent Laws of the 

United States, Title 35 of the United States Code. 

5. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a). 
 

6. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b). 

Defendant has committed acts of infringement in this District and has a regular and 

established place of business within this District.  

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant maintains the place of business at 

68 3rd Street, #110, Brooklyn, New York, 11231 as evidenced by Defendant’s Amazon 

storefront page, accessed on August 31, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 

A.  Similarly, Bill of Landing Import Records list Defendant’s address as 68 3rd Street, 

#110, Brooklyn, New York, 11231, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.   

8. Defendant was registered with the New York’s Department of State Division of 

Corporations as actively conducting business in the State of New York until about August 4, 

2022, a copy of New York’s Department of State Division of Corporations’ webpage showing 

the active status is attached hereto as Exhibit C. Upon learning about a potential litigation in 

this District and to avoid this action, Defendant has changed its status to inactive with the New 

York’s Department of State Division of Corporations on or about August 4, 2022.  

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant is subject to this Court’s general and 

specific personal jurisdiction, because Defendant has sufficient minimum contacts within the 

State of New York and this District, pursuant to due process and/or the New York Long Arm 

Statute, because Defendant purposefully availed itself of the privileges of conducting business 

in the State of New York and in this District, because Defendant regularly conducts and solicits 

business within the State of New York and within this District, and because Plaintiff’s causes 
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of action arise directly from each of Defendant’s business contacts and other activities in the 

State of New York and this District. 

BACKGROUND 
 

U.S. Patent No. 11,123,901 
 

10. Kazimierz Bigus is the inventor of U.S. Patent No. 11,123,901 (“the ’901 

patent”). A true and correct copy of the ’901 patent is attached as Exhibit D. 

11. The ’901 patent resulted from the innovation of Mr. Bigus (hereinafter “the 

Inventor”) in the field of 3-dimentional (3D) printing and 3D drawing by using 3D pens. These 

efforts resulted in the development of a novel system that allows creation of various 2- 

dimensional (2D) and 3D objects using an inventive silicon mat.  

12. In particular, the ‘901 patent is directed to a device that allows for the creation 

of 2D and 3D plastic (or similar material) objects using a 3D drawing pen.  The device consists 

of a silicon, non-sticky, heat-resistant, flexible, and transparent mat in the surface of which are 

cut grooves within which a still-soft plastic filament, extruded by a hand-free 3-D drawing pen, 

is laid down for the creation of 2D and 3D plastic objects. The surface of the above-described 

silicon, non-sticky, heat-resistant, flexible, and transparent mat can be virtually of any 

geometric or non-geometric shape and size within which, and in which can be cut grooves of 

various size and shape. This invention solves the problem of the impossibility, due to human 

free hand instability, and lack of precision in drawing, to draw and create correctly and 

precisely 2D and 3D objects by means of a free-hand 3D drawing pen only.   

13. For example, as recited in claim 1 of the ’901 patent, the Inventor developed a 

device that includes: 

a number of templates, each said template is characterized with a 
template surface including a plurality of template grooves of 
predetermined shapes and predetermined sizes; said template grooves 
each defines walls and a bed; said template grooves are capable of 
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being filled in with a filament extruded by the 3-D drawing pen, such 
that the filament forms the 2-dimensional and 3-dimensional objects; 
said template grooves function as a guide for the drawer and as a 
depository for the filament thereby allowing for a correct and accurate 
formation of said 2-dimensional and 3-dimensional objects, through 
containing the filament laid within the walls of said template grooves; 
 
and a fuse-and-join area functioning as a base for concentrically 
placing the 2-dimensional and 3-dimensional objects formed within 
said number of templates as parts for assembling thereof into a 
complex 3-dimensional object, and joining said 2-dimensional and 3-
dimensional objects by the filament extruded by the 3-D drawing pen; 
wherein said filament functions as a joiner for said parts; and wherein 
said fuse-and-join area is characterized by a plurality of fuse-and-join 
grooves having sizes exceeding the respective predetermined sizes of 
said template grooves by an extra length, the extra length is at least one 
size of predetermined sizes of said template grooves, and thereby 
producing an external edge of the base. 

 
14. Having a fuse-and-joint area provides a specific and important advantage over 

the other offerings in the market by facilitating an improved stability of the 2D and 3D objects.   

15. Because of the aforementioned advantages that can be achieved through the use 

of the patented invention, the ’901 patent presents significant commercial value for companies 

like Defendant. 

COUNT I  
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 11,123, 901 

 
16. The allegations set forth in the foregoing paragraphs are incorporated into this 

Count I. 

17. On September 21, 2021, the ’901 patent was duly and legally issued by the 

United States Patent and Trademark Office under the title “DEVICE AND METHOD FOR 

THE CREATION OF 2D AND 3D OBJECTS BY USING A 3D DRAWING PEN.” 

18. Square One Choices is the assignee and owner of the right, title and interest in 

and to the ’901 patent, including the right to assert all causes of action arising under said patent 

and the right to any remedies for infringement of it. 
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19. Upon information and belief, Defendant has and continues to directly infringe 

one or more claims of the ’901 patent by selling  MYNT3D Design Mat Kit as part of the 

Defendant’s line of products (the “Accused Products”) via Amazon marketplace, its own 

website located at https://www.mynt3d.com/collections/all/. Examples of the Accused Products are 

shown in Exhibit E. 

20. Upon information and belief, the Accused Products read at least on independent 

claim 1 of the ‘901 Patent. Exemplary infringement analysis showing infringement of all 

elements of the device recited in claim 1 of the ’901 patent is set forth in Exhibit F. This 

infringement analysis is preliminary, as it is provided in advance of any discovery provided by 

Defendant with respect to the ’901 patent. Square One Choices reserves all rights to amend, 

supplement and modify this preliminary infringement analysis. Nothing in the attached chart 

should be construed as any express or implied contention or admission regarding the 

construction of any term or phrase of the claims of the ’901 patent. 

21. Defendant has infringed and is infringing, individually and/or jointly, either 

literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claim 1 of the ’901 patent in violation of 

35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq., directly or indirectly, by making, using, offering for sale, selling, 

offering for lease, leasing in the United States, and/or importing into the United States without 

authority or license, the Accused Products. 

22. Upon information and belief, Defendant has had knowledge of Plaintiff’s patent 

rights as early as June 2020. The Chief Executive Officer and founder of Defendant, Ryley 

Lyon, contacted Plaintiff’s founder and inventor of the ’901 patent in an effort to purchase 

Plaintiff’s business on June 26, 2020. In his email, Mr. Lyon made it clear that he was aware of 

the pending patent application (that later matured into the ‘901 patent) and suggested to buy 

Plaintiff’s “brand in it’s entirety”. A copy of the email is attached as Exhibit G.  
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23. Defendant has had prior knowledge that the ’901 patent has issued, at least since 

the Accused Products were removed by Amazon after Plaintiff’s allegations of infringement 

were presented to Amazon on October 21, 2021 (Amazon Complaint ID: 8986108201). 

24. In response to the removal of the Accused Products by Amazon, Defendant 

appealed the removal by providing false information to Amazon. In particular, Defendant 

provided infringement analysis based on the products that was not on sale via Amazon, but 

rather Defendant relied in its analysis on the device that was specifically developed to design 

around the ‘901 patent. See Exhibit H and Exhibit I. 

25. Upon information and belief, since Defendant had knowledge of the ’901 patent, 

Defendant has induced and continues to induce others to infringe at least one of claim 1 of the 

’901 patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) by, among other things, and with specific intent or willful 

blindness, actively aiding and abetting others to infringe, including but not limited to 

Defendant’s partners and customers, whose use of the Accused Instrumentalities constitutes 

direct infringement of at least claim 1 of the ’901 patent. 

26. In particular, Defendant’s actions that aid and abet others such as their partners 

and customers to infringe include distributing the Accused Products and providing materials 

and/or services related to the Accused Products. (See, e.g., 

https://www.mynt3d.com/collections/all.) 

27. Upon information and belief, Defendant has engaged in such actions with 

specific intent to cause infringement or with willful blindness to the resulting infringement 

because Defendant has had actual knowledge of the ’901 patent and that its acts were inducing 

infringement of the ’901 patent since Defendant has had knowledge of the ’901 patent. 

28. Defendant’s infringement of the ’901 patent is willful and deliberate, entitling 

Square One Choices to enhanced damages and attorneys’ fees. 
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29. Defendant’s infringement of the ’901 patent is exceptional and entitles Square 

One Choices to attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in prosecuting this action under 35 U.S.C. § 

285. 

30. Square One Choices is entitled to recover from Defendant all damages that 

Square One Choices has sustained as a result of Defendant’s infringement of the ’901 patent, 

including without limitation and/or not less than a reasonable royalty. 

JURY DEMAND 

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Sino demands a trial by jury 

on all issues triable as such. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 
 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Sino demands judgment for itself and against Defendant as 

follows: 

A. An adjudication that the Defendant has infringed U.S. Patent No. 11,123,901. 

B. An award of damages to be paid by Defendant adequate to compensate Square 

One Choices for Defendant’s past infringement of U.S. Patent No. 11,123,901, and any 

continuing or future infringement through the date such judgment is entered, including interest, 

costs, expenses and an accounting of all infringing acts including, but not limited to, those acts 

not presented at trial; 

C. Enhanced damages for willful infringement; 
 

D. A declaration that this case is exceptional under 35 U.S.C. § 285, and an award of 

Square One Choice’s reasonable attorneys’ fees; and 
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E. An award to Square One Choices of such further relief at law or in equity as the 

Court deems just and proper. 

 
 

 

 

Dated: September 8, 2022 MUNCY, GEISSLER, OLDS & LOWE, 
P.C. 
 

/s/Leo V. Gureff    
Leo V. Gureff (LG1271) 

lvg@mg-ip.com 
4000 Legato Road, Suite 310 
Fairfax, Virginia 22033 USA 

Tel: 1.703.621.7140 
Fax: 1.703.621.7155 

 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Square One Choices Inc. 
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